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Melba Park

Location:
22 Market Street, LILYDALE VIC 3140 - Property No 1418

Heritage Status / Level of Significance:
Included in Heritage Overlay

Heritage Inventory (HI) Number:
Listing Authority: HI
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Heritage Overlay Number: HO207

Statement of Significance:
Melba Park, named after the famous Dame Nellie Melba, has high local significance as an important township
recreational reserve, which was created as the result of the original 1867 township plan.  It has been used for a
variety of recreational purposes for over a century and is an important part of the town's heritage.  It is notable
for a number of remaining features, which include the Mafeking Tree; the Melba gates erected in 1927 by
Dame Nellie Melba in memory of her father, David Mitchell; and the 1925 Lilydale Croquet Club Pavilion,
relocated to the park in 1928.  The park was the site once of an 1887 gasworks, 1880s Lilydale Market, the
1920s Melba Hall, and the 1893 Lilydale Baths, replaced by the Olympic-sized pool in 1959.  Melba Park forms
part of an important township precinct, close to the main Lilydale township shopping centre, covering an area
surrounding the Museum of Lillydale (former Shire Offices) and Athenaeum Theatre (former Athenaeum Hall).

Description

Melba Park is located in the centre of Lilydale township, extending along Olinda Creek, and providing the
setting for a number of important buildings in Castella Street (former Mechanics Institute, Free Library and
Athenaeum Theatre, and Shire of Lillydale offices).  

Melba Park is an extensive area, containing a number of significant elements including the Lilydale Croquet
Pavilion (c1925), memorial gates, Mafeking tree, a large oak located at the rear of the former Shire Offices, and
the swimming pool (c1959). The development of the park, and the creation of these features is described in the
history. 

The Melba Park gates are large wrought iron gates set on tall stone-clad posts. They are located on the corner
of Castella and Market Streets. The gates are dedicated to David Mitchell. The plaque reads: "To the memory
of D. Mitchell. This tribute to my beloved father by his daughter Nellie." The wrought iron gates have the letters
D and M as part of the wrought iron work design. The gates are intact except for the removal of a clock which
was once located on one of the gate posts. 

The croquet club is in Market Street, located close to the gates. The club house is a small timber building with
an externally exposed timber frame (an unusual building form in the southern parts of Australia). It is
rectangular in plan and has a terracotta tiled roof.

Good

Evidence of stages

Heritage Study / Consultant Yarra Ranges - Shire of Yarra Ranges Heritage Study, Context Pty Ltd, 2000

Construction Date Range

Architect / Designer

Municipality YARRA RANGES SHIRE

Other names

Hermes number 115538

Property number 1418

This place/object may also be State heritage listed. Check the Victorian Heritage Database. For further details, contact the
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local Council or go to Planning Schemes Online
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